Fen|anPublic Document Pack '00%
CAMBRIDGESHIRE peope

Fenland District Council dr'ven
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL Committee Officer: Helen Moore
Tel: 01354 622461
FRIDAY, 12 JULY 2024 e-mail: memberservices@fenland.gov.uk

10.00 AM

COUNCIL CHAMBER, FENLAND HALL,
COUNTY ROAD, MARCH PE15 8NQ

1 Appointment of the Chairman for the Municipal year
2 To receive apologies for absence.
3 Appointment of the Vice Chairman for the Municipal Year
4 Previous Minutes. (Pages 3 - 12)
To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of 04 March 2024

5 To report additional items for consideration which the Chairman deems urgent by
virtue of the special circumstances to be now specified.

6 Members to declare any interests under the Local Code of Conduct in respect of any
item to be discussed at the meeting.

7 Update on previous actions.
Members to receive an update on the previous meeting’s Action Plan.
8 Freedom Leisure - Review (Pages 13 - 24)

Presentation attached

CUSTOMER
SERVICE

EXCELLENCE
[ 5
g P

i
%

Fenland District Coundl  Fenland Hall e County Road e March  Cambridgeshire o PE15 8NQ

Telephone: 01354 654321 o Textphone: 01354 622213 g" “‘% INVESTORS
Email: info@fenland.gov.uk o Website: www.fenland.gov.uk 4 ¢ IN PEOPLE



9 Overview & Scrutiny Annual Report (Pages 25 - 34)
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report reflects what has been undertaken and
achieved by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel during 2023/24 and takes a forward
look at the programme of work and challenges in 2024/2025
10 Future Work Programme (Pages 35 - 42)
To consider the Draft Work Programme for Overview & Scrutiny Panel 2024/25.
11 Items which the Chairman has under item 5 deemed urgent.
Thursday, 4 July 2024
Members: Councillor Mrs M Davis (Chairman), Councillor E Sennitt Clough (Vice-Chairman), Councillor
B Barber, Councillor G Booth, Councillor J Carney, Councillor L Foice-Beard, Councillor

R Gerstner, Councillor A Gowler, Councillor A Hay, Councillor S Imafidon, Councillor
Dr H Nawaz, Councillor D Roy and Councillor Woollard



Agenda Item 4

Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY PANEL

MONDAY, 4 MARCH 2024 - 10.00 AM

Fenland District Council

PRESENT: Councillor Mrs M Davis (Chairman), Councillor B Barber, Councillor G Booth,
Councillor J Carney, Councillor L Foice-Beard, Councillor S Imafidon, Councillor Dr H Nawaz,
Councillor D Roy, Councillor E Sennitt Clough and Councillor Woollard

APOLOGIES: Councillor R Gerstner (Vice-Chairman) and Councillor A Hay
Officers in attendance: Amy Brown (Assistant Director), Dan Horn (Assistant Director), Annabel
Tighe (Head of Environmental Health and Compliance Manager) and Helen Moore (Member

Services and Governance Officer)

0OSC33/23 PREVIOUS MINUTES.

The minutes of the meeting of 15 January 2024 were confirmed and signed.

0OSC34/23 REVIEW OF CLARION HOUSING GROUP

Members received a presentation which gave an overview of Clarion’s work and development.

Members made comments, asked questions, and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Sennitt Clough asked Carl Grimmer regarding the subcontractors and the term
rigorous used in the procurement, how exactly are they procured, how are they held to
standards and if this can be answered what percentage of agency operators are currently
working in Fenland? Carl Grimmer responded that 2 years ago they went through a round of
procurement, this was broken into regions then subcontractors were invited who had an
interest in working for the team to make an application. He continued that the application is
based on two key elements one being price, which is priced against a National Housing
Federation schedule of rates which is a commonly used document for a number of local
authorities and housing associations who operate under volume 7.2, the subcontractors are
asked to bid against that with an idea of how much work might be sent their way on a plus
or minus rate, that is one element of the scheme and on the latest round this accounted for
60% of the scores. Carl Grimmer stated that the second element is based around a number
of quality questionnaires, which looks at how they are going to set themselves up to deliver
services in the Fenland area with examples of work that they have completed before and
contracts that they have ran, how they will engage with the customer and how they will meet
the SLA, which is just a few of about ten different criteria asked, and once the submission
has been submitted there is a panel of people who will look at all of those quality
submissions and review them with a score of one to five with one being poor and five being
good. He added that the panel will agree on the overall score, this will be carried out on
every subcontractor within the region that way an agreed understanding and agreed
submission of what their final score would be, then the combination of the price and quality
will determine who the contract will be awarded too. Carl Grimmer stated that in order for
the subcontractors to be held to account there is a formal National Subcontractors meeting
with each contractor each month that is led by Clarion’s own internal procurement team but
also has involvement from the area manager and himself as appropriate that is if the
contractor is working well, but if the contractor is causing problems then the meetings will be
increased so the work can be monitored and targets set. He added in relation to agency

Page 3



subcontractors, currently there are none and all the workers are directly employed.
Councillor Sennitt Clough asked which department in Clarion is the largest user of agency
staff? Carl Grimmer replied that he is not able to answer this question. Councillor Sennitt
Clough stated she would like to come back to the question about holding the subcontractors
to account and the monthly meetings that were talked about, and asked does this
information come through from residents, and how does Clarion receive information about
the subcontractors not meeting standards? Carl Grimmer responded there is a process in
place where 10% of jobs completed by subcontractors will be post inspected, with there
being a long-term partnership agreement with the subcontractors to get the best from both
parties, monitoring is limited, however, if the post inspections prove or show that the work
has not been completed to the standard required they will be asked to attend a meeting and
the issues addressed. He continued that there is a formal monthly meeting that is minuted,
and residents feedback is featured within that meeting and the subcontractor is monitored in
accordance with the service level agreement, for example, to respond to an emergency
within 24 hours or to respond to a routine job within 28 days, and this is managed locally so
any evidence of a job failing can be picked up quickly. Carl Grimmer stated that the
subcontractors are also subject to the random TLF Leadership Factor Customer Satisfaction
Surveys that come through to the office and if there is a poor score this can be picked up
and any issue addressed, but the resident will contact the office directly if they are unhappy
with the standard or level of work being provided. Sally Greetham added that there are
specialist contractors for a range of work, for example the performance measures that are in
place for Swale who look after the gas and oil, but there are other contractors that look after
lifts and also contractors that look after air source and heat pumps plus contractors that look
after water testing, all these contractors have a similar raft of performance targets in place.
She stated that some of these performance measures are included in the Clarion
Commitments which can be found on the website under the section on Building Safety.
Councillor Booth stated he has raised a number of issues for a number of projects which are
Net Zero projects such as Springfield Road, and Garden Lane which was shown in the
presentation, and from talking with residents these complaints are not being dealt with in
real time. He appreciated there is a process in place but he has heard from residents of
examples where there are still issues with contractors two years down the line and times
where he has intervened as a local Councillor and not had satisfactory answers and the
time scale has been far too long. Carl Grimmer responded he does have a lot more
engagement with the Planning Investment Team and these issues have been discussed,
particularly around some of the early properties where there were problems and feels that
this has now been acknowledged by the Planning Investment Team. He stated that whilst
he cannot discuss this in the meeting, he is willing to have a meeting with Councillor Booth
outside of this meeting and take his points away to see if they can be resolved. Councillor
Booth asked if Clarion would look at the process of how they get feedback from residents
and how they keep residents informed? Kirsten Wildman responded they take on board
everything Councillor Booth has shared and stated Clarion are in the process of reviewing
how they manage complaints so the feedback will be fed into that process.

Councillor Roy stated he would like to ask Yvonne Ogden if there are surveys that are used
to engage local communities as he understands there is feedback from the residents that
use Clarion housing stock, but for the communities around that housing stock, does Clarion
interact and engage with the surrounding community? Yvonne Ogden responded Clarion do
work with communities and residents through the Resident Community Team to look at
undertaking surveys and inform residents about events going on within the areas
advertised.

Councillor Carney stated that Neighbourhood Response Officers (NRO) and Live Smart
Managers are the first point of contact between tenants and Clarion Housing, asking how
much involvement do they have with the sub-contracting jobs or maintenance jobs?
Councillor Carney also asked if there were enough NRO and Live Smart Managers to
oversee the number of properties there are within the district? Sally Greetham reported that
Clarion is currently looking at how frontline services are managed she feels there are the

Page 4



right numbers, but the delivery model is being looked at to see if there are any
improvements that can be made as it is important that the NRO and Live Smart Managers
are out and about as much as possible which is what the aim is. Carl Grimmer added that
with the jobs required within the Live Smart Scheme there has been a lot of processes put
in place to enable Live Smart Managers to raise work directly through a new system called
CFS, Clarion Field Service System, where work can be booked directly, this offers a more
slick and smoother process which has made a difference to the booking system.

Councillor Barber stated she had noted on the Clarion Commitments it states to maintain
building safety and she would like to draw attention to Roman Court which is a now
redundant home for the elderly in Leverington with this building having been empty for
several years and nothing seems to be being done and recently a young child was inside
and fell down a hole, with this building now becoming a danger to the public and something
needs to be done urgently. Paul Norman responded this building has been through an
options appraisal which has taken longer than expected, there should be an outcome about
the future of this site within the next three months, but he was not aware of the incident with
the child and will look into this. Sally Greetham added there has been security on patrol and
the site has been regularly checked. Councillor Barber questioned if the fence was going to
be repaired around the site? Sally Greetham could not comment at this time, but it will be
looked into.

Councillor Foice-Beard asked Yvonne Ogden coming back to the previous question about
working with the communities, how does Community Engage work and is there a process
on deciding what projects or training goes where? Yvonne Ogden responded a variety of
different indicators are looked at as to where the money is allocated for the future and what
that will deliver and that will go from looking at community insight, industry deprivation and
left behind areas to focus on where this needs to be then on a local level the team work with
local partners to understand what the need is in an area, and work with the residents
involvement team to understand what the residents need, there is also an officer in Fenland
who works closely with the partners on the ground and with housing officers. She added
that there are some national initiatives that can be brought into a local area like the
Shooters United that was offered to Orchard School, and there was also an issue of anti-
social behaviour on Lime Avenue, so Clarion worked closely with Orchard School and the
local Youth Sport Centre, so those young people were part of the diversion reaction
scheme. Yvonne Ogden stated that there is a Community Ambassador programme which is
a national programme, which has been delivered very successfully within the Fenland area.
Councillor Foice-Beard asked if the information is collated and evaluated and, if so, are
Clarion able to share some success stories or not so successful stories? Yvonne Ogden
replied in the affirmative, all the partners involved collate a report on a quarterly basis and
there is a range of numerical KPI's around the numbers that are engaged, number of
volunteers and volunteering hours and the people that progressed into employment or into
training. She added that case studies are looked at where things have happened and where
people have had success stories then at the end of the production period there is a meeting
with the partners involved to look at whether it has delivered what was planned and what
the learning has been, which is all captured on an investment page which Clarion are happy
to share with the panel.

Councillor Sennitt Clough asked, to follow on from the last question to Yvonne Ogden, the
term engagement is used a lot what does that mean? She added that on the presentation it
stated 1,289 young people were engaged and asked what exactly does that mean? Yvonne
Ogden replied it is an interesting terminology for this project with the word engaged helps
relate to the amount of young people attending youth sessions the Shooters United
sessions or the Wisbech Community Farm Project who are physically engaged in that
process, being supported, and getting involved.

Councillor Sennitt Clough asked Sally Greetham is there still a Resident Liaison Officer that
talks to residents in the community and, if so, can she talk about the effectiveness of those
officers? Sally Greetham responded there are Neighbour Response Officers who are the
frontline team and are the point of contact when it comes to community engagement, they

Page 5



are tasked to respond to complaints, anti-social behaviour, initiate any community
engagement, check to make sure cleaning contractors are doing their job, and to check
estates are maintained. Councillor Sennitt Clough asked if this was effective? Sally
Greetham answered it is rated through customer satisfaction, looking at the rate of anti-
social behaviour and the upkeep of the estates.

Councillor Nawaz stated he would like to address anti-social behaviour as, in his view, the
process Clarion have in place seem to take a long time to sort out and can really affect the
victims so asked if there are any measures in place for a quicker resolution and are there
any figures that can be shared on events and cases showing how long it took to resolve?
He also asked are there any plans to bring disused houses back into use and what tools
does Clarion have at its disposal to address privately used houses that have fallen into
disrepair? Sally Greetham responded private properties would not fall into the remit of
Clarion housing and with its own housing stock there is a clear target around reletting any
properties that do become empty which are referenced to in the occupation numbers. She
continued in terms of anti-social behaviour the length of time is looked at and a case is
opened, contact is made with the resident with an understanding that some cases can be
complicated and drawn out, at every step the complainant is kept informed about solutions
and what Clarion propose to put in place, for example some of the tools used are talking to
the other party, offering mediation if there is a dispute between parties and leasing with
other agencies involved. Sally Greetham stated there are other tools used in worst case
scenarios where legal advice is given or repossession action is taken to evict customers.
Councillor Nawaz asked if there were any emergency measures in place for extreme cases
of mental and emotional abuse? Sally Greetham answered every case is risk assessed and
if there is any threat of violence the response time will be quicker, and injunctions can be
put in place within 24 hours, and this is why Clarion work hard with other parties and
agencies like the Police and the local Council to be able to speed up certain cases where
there is a threat of violence or drug dealing.

Councillor Nawaz asked if there is a programme in place to fit solar panels to properties and
what sort of budget is there for this? Dan Read responded there is the Clarion 2050
Strategy solar which this falls under, all the roofs across the whole organisation have
recently been mapped with the information being received a few weeks ago and has given
the team every house roof size and overhang, shading and most importantly what output
the solar panels can have. He continued that the strategy sets out that all roofs from next
year forward will be considered to have photovoltaics (PV), some of the PV installations that
were undertaken in the demonstration phase here in Fenland had the inline solar installed in
this part of the roof, which is the preferred option, from a maintenance perspective, cost
effectiveness and a customer perspective with all of the roofs due to be replaced between
now and 2050. Dan Read stated that these panels typically have a 60 year life cycle so
there is a separate work stream where there will be solar planted on top of existing roofs
and all the structural surveys and necessary checks will be carried out before work starts,
so solar is very much part of the future plan along with unlocking back up storage systems.
Councillor Carney asked, with all gas boilers, does Clarion provide Carbon Monoxide
Alarms for every property? Carl Grimmer responded that when checks are made at the
properties the alarms are checked and at the minimum if there are no alarms a battery
powered Carbon Monoxide Alarm will be fitted.

Councillor Imafidon asked Carl Grimmer about whether there is a portal where tenants can
log their complaints online, how often do the UPVC doors and windows get changed in the
properties and what is the life span of these products. Carl Grimmer responded residents
can log a repair directly online through a system called OREO which has been in place for
the last 12 months, the resident can log online and use the system to log their repair and a
slot for the repair to be undertaken which is convenient to the resident. He stated that there
are ongoing stock condition surveys which look at the remaining life of key components
within properties, each case is different depending on how the property is looked after but
there is an estimate that the lifespan of a composite door and UPVC windows should be
typically 25-30 years, however, if there is a failing the Responsive Repair Team will pick this

Page 6



up and if the item cannot be repaired it will be replaced. Councillor Imafidon stated he would
like a direct contact number for Clarion because as a councillor residents do approach them
to help with their situations. Kirsten Wildman stated that there is an email address that can
be shared which will fast track through to the team.

Councillor Booth acknowledged that there is an email address, but this has been reported to
be slow to answer and respond to the initial requests which can be frustrating for residents
and for them as councillors trying to help residents within a timely manner. He asked if this
can be investigated as this system is not responsive enough? Kirsten Wildman thanked
Councillor Booth and stated this is useful information and will be investigated.

Councillor Roy asked Kirsten Wildman if it would be helpful to Clarion if they knew who the
local ward councillors are as residents will go to their local councillor first if they are not sure
or not computer literate or for other reasons they are not able to speak to Clarion directly
and as has been pointed out the direct line is not working efficiently enough. Kirsten
Wildman acknowledged the feedback and stated that this is something that needs
developing and that is being looked at.

Councillor Booth stated he has raised this issue a couple of years ago originally around the
empty properties at Thorney Toll which he was updated by Dan Read but since then nothing
seems to have materialised so asked for the latest update on when this work will be
completed. Dan Read responded he agreed this has taken too long, the options appraisal
has been completed and once the results come in there will be a conclusion within the next
three months around what will be done with that asset. Councillor Booth stated he
understands that there was an agreement in place already that FDC were going to buy
some of the properties and Clarion were going to buy the rest and asked is that not the case
anymore? Dan Read replied broadly speaking that is still the plan but it is working out the
cost and getting the figures right which will take two to three months. Councillor Booth
stated he was a little disappointed with this answer as there are 1700 people on housing
waiting lists and some of those people could have been housed by now. Dan Read
apologised for the length of time this project has taken and the timelines that were spoken
about earlier are the ones that are being worked with now.

Councillor Mrs Davis asked that when a family is being resettled what weight is given to
trying to keep them in the same locality as there are instances where the families do not
have access to a vehicle and have now got to take the children 15 miles to school. Sally
Greetham replied that the vast majority of the homes are elected through Home Link and
anyone who applies to Home Link will go into a banding system depending on their
particular needs then they can bid on Home Link for whatever property they choose so it
puts the ownership in their hands as to those decisions. Councillor Mrs Davis stressed what
she would like to know regardless of points how much weight is put on families to try and
keep them local. Sally Greetham stated the choice based letting system is a good way of
allocating homes because the choice is with the individual as to where they bid for homes.
Councillor Booth referred back to the question asked about gas and oil as his understanding
is that Swale dealt primarily with gas in past presentations and information has been asked
in the past about oil fired boilers particularly in rural Fenland so is Swale now dealing with
the oil-fired boilers or are they effectively subcontracted out? Carl Grimmer responded he
did not have the answer but will find out and report back to Councillor Booth.

Councillor Booth asked about future development, in past presentations there has been an
idea about what the future might hold, in this meeting there has been indications of
discussions but not what number of houses there will be available to help with the Fenland
backlog as Clarion is the main housing provider. He asked how many houses are there
available in the pipeline within the next two, three, five years? Dan Read responded at
present there are none that are under contract within the near future, but Clarion is always
looking in Fenland at new development and new contracts and do aim to build homes in the
area if possible. Councillor Booth asked if Clarion are in talks with any major developers?
Dan Read answered yes there are discussions happening but that is all that can be said at
this stage.

Page 7



Members noted the information provided in the annual review of Clarion Housing Group.

OSC35/23 NORTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE & PETERBOROUGH CARE PARTNERSHIP

Members received a presentation from John Rooke on the North Cambridgeshire & Peterborough
Care Partnership’s Progressing Integration of Health and Care.

Members made comments, asked questions, and received responses as follows:

Councillor Nawaz stated that there was nothing in the slides to cover substance abuse,
drugs, or alcohol addiction and with an 80% increase in this category he would like to know
what is tailor made for the Fenland area particularly the North? He continued the measures
that were presented did not indicate the allowances to be made for the future and, therefore,
there were no indicators for future assets so he would also like to know what the budget is
for Fenland, for Peterborough and for Huntingdonshire and how the budget is to be
distributed and allocated and to what areas. Councillor Nawaz added to give some medical
facts as examples as to how funding can make a difference in many areas of the medical
profession and stressed he would like to see a better plan of how this new committee will
work and the measures put in place to see results year on year. John Rooke responded that
today’s presentation was designed to give the panel an overview of what is available, there
are some statistics on the website which he feels Councillor Nawaz will find interesting and
cover most of what he has asked today, but in the short term as the committee gets better
and the indicators build this will help to develop what changes are needed to be made for
the future and the aim is to think about what the population needs, not just practically or
clinically but holistically too and how this will be put into practice. Councillor Nawaz stated
his initial question was not answered around the budget and asked how much would be
allocated to the hub, how would the staff be trained and would the staff be recruited within
the Council or through the NHS or from outside and how the achievements would be
logged? John Rooke responded that the budget allowance comes from the NHS and is
divided out to different areas, some of this will contribute to the Hub with a link to need,
there will be a bid going into the local GP surgeries for a contract and a linked need for this
service plus other voluntary organisations with the project being reliant on some of these
partnerships’ contributions and initiatives for its success. He added that this hub is designed
for the people of Fenland and ideally to employ people from Fenland, there will be a central
team which be tailored and relevant as possible to the local needs of residents.

Councillor Sennitt Clough asked what will be said to residents who mistake the Care
Partnership as just another tier and how will action be taken instead of just passing cases
around? John Rooke replied there has been a new Integrated Care System formed which is
about partners coming together and the hub being able to add value to the service provided
to fill the gap when case loads come in to support those people in the community and bridge
the gap of their needs.

Councillor Roy stated there has been a Fenland case study by Cambridge University going
on for around 20 years and a massive amount of data has been collated and asked how
much of this information was used when putting the Care Partnership figures together and
was Mr Rooke aware of this study going into stage 3. John Rooke stated that they were
aware of the study and the data used for this project was used from the same system, and
they are looking forward to seeing what stage 3 produces as this will enable more insight
into options and solutions on lifestyle as there is a lot of ground to make up. He stated that
one issue that has been picked up already from this study is the diagnosis of dementia in
this area and that the support is not available so one thing the Partnership will be looking at
is how this practice can bridge the support of families using the resources from the different
partners that are involved.

Councillor Booth stated as councillors the most common complaint received is around
getting appointments with GP’s and asked where GP practices sit within this Partnership?
John Rooke responded there are GPs already involved in the Partnership and there is an
elected GP partner who sits on the board called Wendy Harrison. He added that to try to

Page 8



address recruitment, the Partnership has been over recruiting to compensate for additional
roles within the practices, however, this does not solve the national challenges that arise
with the shortage of doctors. Councillor Booth asked what sort of numbers locally are being
looked at for GP surgeries? John Rooke replied he did not have the figures with him, but the
other roles within the surgery have been successful like paramedic and pharmacies and the
key to making changes within the practice is to offer the chance to work with Care
Partnerships and others alike to achieve a more efficient system.

Councillor Nawaz stated he believed there are some national measures in place to fill the
need for the number of doctors such as IDP which bring in doctors from overseas on a four-
year contract. He would like to see on the next visit an update of GPs within the Fenland
area which have been recruited. Councillor Nawaz asked who Mr Rooke is answerable to
within his role? John Rooke responded he would be happy to come back and share ongoing
progress of the Care Partnership as for who he answers to it is the partners of the Care
Partnership and the bodies of partners involved, the NHS and elected Governors.
Councillor Booth stated he would like to see a meeting set up with the Director of Public
Health and Care Partnerships to be able to give a joint presentation to get to see the whole
picture. John Rooke requested that a topic be chosen so both parties can work together.

Members noted the information provided on the North Cambridgeshire & Peterborough
Care Partnership.

0OSC36/23 PROGRESS OF CORPORATE PRIORITIES - COMMUNITIES

Members considered the progress of the Corporate Priority for Communities.

Members made comments, asked questions, and received responses as follows:

Councillor Booth stated looking at the KPI on page 19 there are some red indicators, with
these areas being about claiming housing benefit and precautions taken when claiming to
be homeless, and asked what are the plans to get back on track so targets are achieved?
Councillor Hoy responded most of this indicates the speed people are moving on which can
be quite timely due to the housing stock available, some landlords are selling up for different
reasons which can affect housing and homelessness and is something that needs
investigating. Councillor Boden added there have been a lot of changes for landlords and
landowners especially on the tax side, therefore, a number of landlords country wide have
decided to sell which has made the market much greater than the demand for landlords
which is why there has been a drop in private landlords. Councillor Booth asked is this trend
because the Fenland area is seen as a cheaper area so more people are trying to get
rented accommodation by moving into the area, putting more pressure on the housing
stock? Councillor Hoy agreed it does not help being in a cheaper area as there are a lot of
big houses that are perfect for HMOs, private care homes and asylum seeker
accommodation, which is one of the reasons why there has been a conversation about not
allowing asylum seekers into cheaper areas because it is adding to the social problems
within these areas.

Councillor Nawaz stated, to pick up on Councillor Booth’s point, part of the reason for the
changes with landlords is overregulation in the housing market by the Government, plus the
taxation changes which means it is no longer that attractive for private landlords to invest in
these houses, as to where the stock has gone some stock is in limbo and in the process of
being sold, some stock has fallen into disuse and disrepair and some stock has been
occupied by Eastern Europeans where they will share a house between two or three
families and this is the only way some landlords can survive.

Councillor Imafidon stated he would like to make the point that high interest rates also affect
private landlords giving some examples of mortgage rates and interest rates and
Government rates which is making private landlords feel this is not a viable business to be
in. Councillor Hoy responded that was a very good point and stated that there has never
been any overview work done in this area, everyone plays a part in this system from private

Page 9



sector housing, Clarion Housing, temporary accommodation and bed and breakfast
accommodations and if anyone makes a decision in the system it always has a knock on
effect further down the line but without everyone there are no houses to help people move
into. She added that some of this is at a national policy level which also has an effect on
what goes on in local areas. Councillor Boden added he agrees with what has been said
and this is quite complex with a lot of moving parts many of which interact with each other,
but the basics are there are not enough houses or properties. He continued Governments of
all parties have recognised this for decades and have failed to ensure sufficient numbers of
properties have been built year on year in order to meet the demand that exists so given
that the system squeezes people out of the bottom of the market, those that are dependent
upon private rented accommodation or those who find themselves in a situation where they
can no longer afford their home can then find their way into statutory homelessness where
the Council has a statutory duty to house people, with other rental organisations not having
this responsibility.

Councillor Roy stated there is a clear need for housing and as people travel round the
district there are lots of undeveloped or unfinished land and asked is there a policy that can
accelerate some of the issues that have been going on for several years concerning these
builds as he feels there needs to be a bit more pressure put on the owners who have left
areas undeveloped and where valuable housing could be built, such as Strathmore House
in EIm as one example. Councillor Boden replied the Council cannot force people to do
anything if they own property or brownfield sites if they do not wish to, however, what can
be done is to look at the draft Local Plan so when the Council presents the draft Local Plan
to the inspector, advantage can be taken to highlight these area which may not be
specifically designated to ensure that they do get development designation and as a Council
see if these areas can be influenced in some way. He added that as far as empty residential
properties is concerned there is an officer who has been dealing with this over the course of
several years and work is always done to ensure that where it is possible those properties
are brought back in to use, there is a penal system of additional Council Tax for empty
properties which are allowed to remain empty after 6,12 or 24 months and the decision
within Fenland is to maximise those multiples so as to maximise the incentive for people to
bring properties back in use, but there are exceptions with one of the worst being the
number of properties where the owner has died and the executor has not applied for
probate which is a big loophole which means the requirement to pay Council Tax on these
properties does not exist and there is very little that can be done. Councillor Mrs French
added Strathmore House in EIm was a residential home and is a Listed Building, Section
215 and Section 216 Notices have been served and she would chase this up.

Councillor Nawaz asked what criteria determines that the Council has a statutory duty to
house a particular person or a family? Councillor Hoy responded anyone can apply to be on
Home Link, somebody could be in a priority need which looks at things like health issues or
overcrowding and various other areas that the team look at and categorise to determine
banding but if they are not a priority need there is no statutory duty in place to house them,
however, that does not mean that help will not be provided and there is a trailblazer service
where people can contact the service and help will be provided to find private rental or help
with discretionary housing payments.

Councillor Mrs Davis stated that there is an issue with the Peterborough Regional Pool
being closed and Chatteris Swimming Pool is now closed so asked if there has been a rise
in people joining the other leisure centres in the area? Phil Hughes stated there has been
an increase in people coming to the George Campbell in March for swimming lessons and
Freedom Leisure Centre has been taking advantage of those pools being closed as has The
Manor at Whittlesey taking in the City of Peterborough Swimming Club with the hope to
increase the number of sessions. Councillor Boden added that some of the Peterborough
schools have also been using The Manor at Whittlesey for swimming lessons so yes there
has been a distinct increase in the Fenland area of the usage of the leisure facilities.
Councillor Booth asked does that mean there are more restrictions on when the public can
use the facilities if groups are placing bookings and is that impacting Fenland residents

Page 10



being able to go and swim? Phil Hughes responded that he has asked for more information
from Freedom Leisure but feels the team have been sensible in terms of allowing public
swimming from time to time because what is needed is a balance between swimming
lessons, swimming clubs and public swimming.

e Councillor Mrs Davis asked Councillor Mrs French if all the road works will be finished in
March Town Centre ready for the Christmas Market in December? Councillor Mrs French
responded her understanding was that the works will be finished by 21 October 2024.

Members noted the progress of the Corporate Priority for Communities.

OSC37/23 UPDATE ON PREVIOUS ACTIONS.

Members noted there were no updates on previous actions.

0OSC38/23 EUTURE WORK PROGRAMME

Councillor Nawaz requested a presentation from the Education Board to talk about children with
special needs to be added to the work plan.

12.30 pm Chairman

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Fenland District Council

leisure operating contract annual report
April 2023 - March 2024

improving lives

through leisure

epuaby

freedomleisure
where you matter

www.freedom-leisure.co.uk



introduction

Fenland District Council and Freedom Leisure have been
working in partnership to provide leisure centre facilities
across the district since December 2018.

Fenland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

March’s George Campbell Leisure Centre,
Wisbech’s Hudson Leisure Centre
Whittlesey’s Manor Leisure Centre
Chatteris” Chatteris Leisure Centre

“We are extremely proud of the achievements and the improvements we Fen | an d Di Si-ri Cf CO U nci |

have been able to make at the leisure centres and to the health and
wellbeing of the people of Fenland during the last five years. This is only
possible with our excellent relationship with all the team at Fenland District
Council. We have a common vision to improve lives through leisure and |
look forward, along with my amazing colleagues that work at the centres, to
continue that good work which benefits the whole community and we'd

encourage as many people to visit their local leisure centre soon” fl"eedo m’ eisure
where you matter

Ivan Horsfall Turner | Chief Executive Officer - Freedom
Leisure




the uk’s second largest genuine charitable leisure trust

GT abed

Freedom Leisure is one of the leading charitable not-for-profit
leisure trusts in the UK, managing over 125 leisure and cultural
facilities on behalf of 30 partners across England and Wales. We are
proud to be delivering high quality, value for money locally-focused
leisure services that are sustainable and accessible to all. As a not-
for-profit organisation we are committed to the ongoing
development of local community facilities and all surpluses are
reinvested to support the objectives we share with our partners.

125

Leisure and Cultural Facilities on behalf of 30
individual clients across England and Wales.

not for profit

freedomleisure is a not-for-profit leisure trust
which manages leisure and cultural facilities on
behalf of partners across the UK to realise our
vision of “improving lives through leisure”

focus

Committed to providing and developing inclusive
leisure facilities for everyone. Delivering a
service to exceed our customers’ expectations

freedomleisure ethos

* Provide affordable and accessible health, leisure and sport facilities
for everyone, therefore having a positive impact on the local
communities in which we operate and serve — we aim to inspire
people to be more active more often

* Reinvest surplus into quality services

* Exceed our partners’ desired outcomes for local communities

* Enhance our reputation and status

* Grow and develop as a company in a sustainable way

* Develop our people

* Renew existing contracts and win new ones

freedomleisure
corporate vision

improving

lives through
leisure

Cs¢/ “e‘
onal trysted pa™



9T abed

in numbers in fenland

486,08 |

active participation |

100,050

gym visits

W 4,163

i fitness
" members

88,862

group
exercise visits

W 93,510

swim visits

2,812

learn to swim
members



financial summary

Financial Summary

April 2023 to March 2024 Actual 12m Bid 12m
Income £3,937,146 £3,653,535
Expenditure £3,819,265 £3,563,784
Total Surplus / (Deficit) £117,881 £89,751
£1,557,529 £1,653,149 £534,529
fitness membership swimming income utility cost
85% vs bid 161% vs bid 252% vs bid

)T abed



our colleagues

within resources
wel I n ess freedomleisure

training and courses
* Resilience training * Stress Awareness
* Mental Health Awareness Training
+ Mental Health Awareness Training for Managers
* Managing Anxiety Training * Level 2 Mental Health Training

local healthy living advice
* Discounted Gym Membership

= Expert Physical Activity Advice

* Expert Nutritional Advice

W - Importance of Exercise * Practice Mindfulness * Improve sleep patterns
» Askfor help * Samaritans - call 116 123 or email jo@samaritans.org
For a list of charity helplines as suggested by NHS for anyone suffering from OCD,
Bipolar, Depression and more www.nhs.uk/mental-health/nhs-voluntary-charity-services/
charity-and-voluntary-services/get-help-from-mental-health-helplines

‘[D additional advice

8T abed

I AM PROUD TO WORK FOR FREEDOM LEISURE

Strongly Disagree
2% Strongly Agree
Disagree s 21%
23%

Agree
54%

| ENJOY MY JOB AND PROVIDING A GOOD
SERVICE TO CUSTOMERS

Strongly Disagree

Disagree 4%
10%

Strongly Agree

40%

Agree
46%



our messaging

/f) school
£ 5

. g~ Bwldmg
gBe Independent Fun Learmng =
_Develop new skllls . Begin YOUL journey sy -

e e ()t o B e ()t

Enjoy and be safe

FREEDOM FOR ME... FREEDOM FOR ME... FREEDOM FOR ME...

“knowing age is only a number” “the ability to express myself” “feeling like | belong”

JOIN US TODAY! @ ( =m= JOIN US TODAY! @ @ =TS JOIN US TODAY! @ ( ===

0@ -r-O

6T abed

Refer a they sign up and you get
friend online and get NO | MONTH = 5
TODAY  JOINING FEE  FREE! Refer a friend they sign up and get and you get

online TODAY NO JOINING FEE | MONTH FREE!




what our customers Say “All the staff are excellent. Friendly, knowledgeable and professional. It is a pleasure to visit -
b & & o oif

“Great facilities swimming lessons reasonably priced. Now offering sports massage so will definitely be
back. The only think that would improve it would be if it had jacuzzi in addition to sauna and steam

rooms - » > > »*”

“I think this leisure centre is brilliant, great and kind staff who keep the gym in tip top condition.
However, the only downside is that the gym opens at 6:30am and not 6am, | think opening half an hour
earlier would benefit loads of people and encourage more to come in the mornings as they’ll be able to

fit it in before work. Just a thought ”

“All the staff are excellent. Friendly, knowledgeable and professional. It is a pleasure to visit -
* A A

“Heartfelt thanks to Phoebe for being an exceptional swimming teacher to my son (Hamza) today. Her
patience, understanding, and inclusive approach created a space where he could develop his swimming
skills and have fun at the same time. We're incredibly grateful for your care and dedication, and he can't
wait for more lessons with you, Hamza is already asking to come back for more. Thank you so so much.”

“I have been in March for the week working and whilst here attended a few aquafit lessons. | would just
like to thank the staff and locals for making me feel so very welcome. What a great bunch of friendly
people you are and the sessions were fantastic especially on Thursday evening. | hope to return to your

0z abed

lovely town again soon.”



Tgabed

energy performance

5.9% reduction
vs 22/23

8.7% reduction
vs 22/23

8. I % reduction
vs 22/23

RESOURCES &
MATERIAL
MANAGEMENT

@ ’l“ f

CARBON & ENERGY

EMBEDDING THE
MANAGEMENT

CULTURE

/ L 4

* Working towards Net Zero Carbon J} * Waste management
emissions from our operations * Reducing consumption of resources | * Measurement & monitoring
* Decarbonising our supply chain * Procurement practices * Marketing & Communication

* Offsetting strategy for residual

* Supporting green practices and
carbon lifestyles

» Staff training

OUR JOURNEY TO NET ZERO

Our Support Hub Our first leisure 15% carbon
in Sussex to be centre to be

Net Zero in 2023 Net Zero by 2024

Multiple centres
reduction year with onsite

on year renewable energy

50% recycling rate Net Zero at 50% carbon Net Zero across
in 2023 multiple site in reduction across our operations
2025 our centres by 2026



2c abed

improving lives through leisure’

Fenland Healthy Communities Exercise on Referral programme:
providing a transformational impact on the health and wellbeing of the

Customer Review
Pemberton Centre

Customer Review

We had a visit with a lady today who attended OTAGO last
week and she absolutely loved the session, she was one of
the clients affected by the lift debacle, so her feedback of
last week's session was detrimental to her returning.

She would like to pass on that Ange (instructor) was
fantastic, her attitude and positivity was radiant which made
6 Hasn't stopped smiling her feel safe, meaning she was able to push herself more.
She said she hasn't stopped smiling all week and it has made
her feel alive again &'

all week and it’s has

made her feel alive
in!

again! §§ 'l won't be able to attend this week:s session as in meetings,

but please pass over to Ange as | have heard from a few
clients how much they have enjoyed her sessions ©"

Background

This review is from an individual who has only just begun
their journey, making their first endeavours into the centre
and is part of the Fibromyalgia cohort that started a weekly
chair-based class in March.

( f creedomleixm

Fenland community

Exercise Referral

Activity on Referral
Who is it for: Adults 16+ with medical conditions.

Referral by: GP's, social prescribers, nurses, physio
teams and health professionals.

Benefits: 12 week tailored programme of exercise to support the differing
need of the individual by a trained Level 3 Exercise Referral Instructor.
Referral Criteria: Various medical conditions including high BMI, depression,
impaired strength and mobility and more.

Get up and go falls prevention

Who is it for: Adults that have an increased risk of falls.
Referral by: Health professional or self referral.
Benefits: Aim to reduce falls,improve strength and
balance, increase confidence & social benefits.

Format: Weekly classes available, led by trained OTAGO
instructor, a specialist in strength and balance classes.

Healthy communities activities
Who is it for: Adults

Referral by: No referral or booking needed.
Benefits: Improve balance/coordination, social
benefits, improved flexibility & mental health benefits.
Format: Walking Football, Walking Netball, Racquet
Sports on a weekly basis (The Pemberton Centre)

The Pemberton Centre: 01933 350324 / nnh.referral@freedom-leisure.co.uk
www.freedom-leisure.co.uk

/ gy Notth
Northamptonshire
Council

freedomleisure
where you matter

Dave’s GP Referral Journey at
The Nene Centre

“On my referral from my doctors to The Nene
Centre in Thrapston. | was assigned to a lovely
trainer called lzzy, who has designed a training
programme for me to hopefully help my
condition.

The training programme provides a range of
exercises that cover all areas of my body from
top to toe. lzzy even included some additional
homework to help with my grip and dexterity.
Izzy took into account my conditions
(Parkinson's and Neuropathy).

This programme has been highly beneficial to my
wellbeing and mental health and | would
definitely recommend the Nene Centre and

66 Izzy is very
thoughtful and caring,

whilst always making sure
she gets the best especially Izzy to anyone who is being referred.”

out of me. 99
@ fresdomisurs




freedomleisure
where you matter

[iv(©E

www.freedom-leisure.co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

Agendaliem g Fenland
CAMBRIDGESHIRE
Committee: Council
Date: 12 July 2024
Report Title: Overview & Scrutiny Panel Annual Report 2023/24
COVER SHEET
1 Purpose / Summary

1.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report reflects what has been undertaken and
achieved by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel during 2023/24 and takes a forward look
at the programme of work and challenges for the Overview and Scrutiny in 2024/25.

1.2 Key Issues

1.1 The Local Government Act 2000 sets out the requirements of a modernised democratic
structure for local authorities. The Act includes the establishment of an Overview and
Scrutiny Panel or Committee.

1.2 Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution sets out the Overview and Scrutiny Panel’'s terms
of reference. There is a stated requirement for the work and working methods of the
Overview and Scrutiny Panel to be reported annually to the Council.

3 Recommendations

1.3 For the Overview and Scrutiny Panel to review and approve the draft annual report for
forwarding to Council.

Wards Affected All

Report Originator(s) Amy Brown, Assistant Director for Legal and Governance
amybrown@fenland.gov.uk

Elaine Cooper, Elections Team Leader
ecooper@fenland.gov.uk

Contact Officer(s) As above

Background Papers Overview and Scrutiny Panel Agendas, Report and Minutes for
2023/24: Browse meetings - Overview and Scrutiny Panel -
Fenland District Council

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

Page 25


mailto:amybrown@fenland.gov.uk
mailto:ecooper@fenland.gov.uk
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/localgov/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=135&Year=0
https://www.fenland.gov.uk/localgov/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=135&Year=0

1 CHAIRMAN'S FOREWORD

In the delivery of my role as Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, | am
pleased to be able to present to you the Annual Report for 2023/24 and a forward look
to 2024/25.

Over the last municipal year and following the commencement of my term as
Chairperson, the Committee has welcomed several new members who have brought
fresh ideas and enthusiasm to the knowledge and expertise of existing members.

Working together, the newly comprised Overview and Scrutiny Committee has sought
to diligently fulfil its important role in overseeing the performance and delivery of
services. We have had a busy and varied year receiving and scrutinising information
from Cabinet and officer colleagues,partners and outside bodies. We have benefitted
from detailed presentations complimented by pertinent Q&A sessions as well as 2
informative training sessions in relation to the functions of O&S and scrutiny of the
budget.

Looking ahead to 2024/25, the future work programme will be published with the
Agenda for each meeting and will continue to focus on issues that are of paramount
importance to local residents and businesses. This will include the return of some
long-standing annual items such as the budget, business plan and a review of core
services but there will also be opportunities to consider matters of emerging
importance as the year progresses.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank everyone who has played a part in
contributing towards the work of the Committee this year with special thanks to our
outgoing Vice Chairman, Councillor Roy Gerstner. | am looking forward to another
year in my role as Chairperson. | remain confident that the Committee can maintain
the high standards expected of it and that it will continue to work with colleagues and
partners to try and make a positive difference to the people of Fenland. As part of this
we will be considering and implementing Department of Levelling UP Housing and
Community’s updated statutory Guidance published on 22" May 2024.

Maureen Davis
Chairman, Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2023/24

Page 26



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 2023-2024

Councillor Maureen Davis - Chairman
Councillor Roy Gerstner - Vice Chairman
Councillor Brenda Barber

Councillor Gavin Booth

Councillor James Carney

Councillor Lucie Foice-Beard
Councillor Alan Gowler

Councillor Anne Hay

Councillor Sidney Imafidon
Councillor Dr Haq Nawaz

Councillor Dal Roy

Councillor Elisabeth Sennitt Clough
Councillor Andrew Woollard
Councillor Gary Christy (Substitute)
Councillor John Clark (Substitute)
Councillor David Connor (Substitute)
Councillor Stuart Harris (Substitute)
Councillor Paul Hicks (Substitute)
Councillor Jason Mockett (Substitute)

INTRODUCTION

What is Overview and Scrutiny?

The Local Government Act 2000 requires Councils to have a committee with
the power to review or scrutinise decisions or actions affecting the authority’s
area or residents. Scrutiny is an essential part of ensuring that local government
remains effective and accountable. Scrutiny ensures that executives are held
accountable for their decisions, that their decision-making process is clear and
accessible to the public and that there are opportunities for the public and their
representatives to influence and improve Council policies.

The power to scrutinise was further expanded by the Police and Justice Act
2006, which provided powers to scrutinise the work of Crime and Disorder
Reduction Partnerships, known locally as the Safer Fenland Partnership.

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 provides
more powers to local government to scrutinise other partner organisations. It
also brings in other provisions that affect how scrutiny committees work,
including powers over the creation of joint committees.

The Localism Act 2011 consolidated the wide range of scrutiny legislation into
a single place, largely unamended from previous legislation. This aims to

Page 27



increase local accountability and transparency of public services as well as
enhancing the involvement of local service users.

3.5 DLUHC issue guidance on the function of Overview and Scrutiny with the latest
update having been published on 22" May 2024.

3.6  All Overview and Scrutiny meetings are held in public session and attendance
and involvement of the public is actively encouraged either via questions or
suggestions for our work programme.

Main responsibilities of Overview and Scrutiny

3.7  The role of Overview and Scrutiny has five broad functions:

e Holding the Council’s Executive and its statutory partners to account in the
public interest. This enables more transparent and effective decision
making.

e Supporting the development of effective policies and initiatives which have
a beneficial impact on the community through policy overview and
development.

e Contributing to continuous improvement in the delivery of the Council’s
corporate priorities.

e Having a positive impact on the work and outcomes of external agencies
and providers of public services.

e Aiding Councillors in engaging with their communities and undertaking the
role of community representatives and leaders.

Scrutiny

Overview

Ensuring that the Council’s policies have
been effectively implemented by the
Cabinet.

Advising on the development of policies.

Recommending how the Council’s | Helping to monitor and drive improvements
corporate priorities can be delivered. within the Council’s corporate priorities.

Bringing a wider perspective to problem | Holding decision makers to account
solving.

Examining broader issues affecting | Ensuring all service providers within a local
local communities. community are providing ‘value for money’

Appointing Members onto Overview and Scrutiny

3.8 Onan annual basis and with input from the group leaders, itis the responsibility
of full Council to appoint an Overview and Scrutiny Panel at their annual
meeting which usually takes place in May. The Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Page 28



consists of thirteen members drawn from the political groups in the same
proportion as they are represented on the Council as a whole. There are also
6 substitutes also allocated on a politically proportionate basis.

Relationship between Overview and Scrutiny, Cabinet and Full Council

]
==
CEe e

4 A BACKWARD LOOK TO 2023 - 2024

What the Overview and Scrutiny Panel achieved in 2023/2024

External advisors/partners

Page 29



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The panel looked at an array of different topic areas; most could be dealt with
by drawing on the knowledge and expertise of Fenland District Council
Councillors and Officers. However, sometimes there is a need to call in external
advisors to help the panel with their knowledge and to provide a different
vantage point.

Fenland’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel continues its commitment to
collaborating with partner organisations. The table below highlights the external
partners the Overview and Scrutiny Panel have already engaged with, when
undertaking the scrutiny function during 2023/24.

- External L
Agenda item Advisor/Partner Organisation
Review of Delivery of Matthew Waite- Anglian Revenues
Revenues and Benefits Wright Partnership
Service Lorraine King
Review of Delivery of Matt Wickham, Freedom Leisure
Leisure Services Paul Doyle

Simon Pesic-Smith
Review of Community Inspector Andy Cambridgeshire
Safety Partnership Priorities | Morris Police
Q&A re: Water Supply, Grant Tuffs Anglian Water
Treatment and Flooding in Natasha Kenny,
Fenland
Review of Social Housing Sally Greetham Clarion
Provision Dan Read

Yvonne Ogden

Paul Norman

Kirsten Wildman

Danny Thorpe

Carl Grimmer
Review of Care Partnership | John Rooke North
Provision Cambridgeshire Care

Partnership

As well as working with individual partners, the panel have also scrutinised
other elements of partnership working through each of the respective corporate
priority areas. The panel will continue with this successful approach during
2024/25.

How the work of Overview and Scrutiny is linked to the Council’s
corporate priorities

Fenland District Council’s Business Plan is the vision for the future of Fenland,
clearly setting out a series of priorities that will be the focus of the organisation
for the next twelve-month period. To ensure these priorities are correct, deliver
on targets and achieve outcomes, the Overview and Scrutiny work programme

Page 30




4.5

5.1

5.2

reflects the Council’s priorities to ensure robust scrutiny in meaningful priority
areas is achieved.

The table below illustrates how agenda items link in with Fenland’s priorities:

C — Communities

Env — Environment

E — Economy

QO — Quality Organisation

Topic/lssue

Review of Delivery of Revenues
& Benefits

Review of Delivery of Leisure
Services

Review of Priorities of Community
Safety Partnership

CIS & Investment Board Update

Draft O&S Annual Report
2023/24

LGO  Annual Review  of
Complaints

Progress against Corporate
Priority: Environment

Annual Meeting with Leader,
Deputy Leader and CEO

Local Government Ombudsman
— Annual Review of Complaints
Q&A re: Water Supply, Treatment
and Flooding in Fenland

Draft Business Plan 2024-2025
Budget Report

Fees and Charges 2024/25
Review of Social Housing
Provision

Review of Care Partnership
Provision

Progress against Corporate
Priority - Communities

Specific reviews undertaken in 2023- 2024

A cross-party Task and Finish Group was formed in 2022/23 to review the
Council’s Corporate Performance Indicators to ensure that they continued to
enhance the Council's corporate priorities in a measurable and achievable way.

The work of the Task and Finish Group continued into 2023-2024 with

Councillors Woolard, Foice-Beard and Gerstner being appointed to replace
those councillors who were no longer members of the Overview and Scrutiny

Page 31



5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Panel. Councillors Booth and Hay remained with the Group and were able to
assist in ensuring continuity across the lifespan of the project.

The Task and Finish Group reported its suggestions to the Overview and
Scrutiny Panel at its meeting on 28" November 2023 and these were
considered by Cabinet and incorporated into the Business Plan for 2024/25.
The work of the Group has therefore now concluded.

Overview and Scrutiny Call — In

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel have the opportunity to scrutinise Executive
decisions that have been made, but not implemented through the ‘call-in’
mechanism.

In accordance with the Council’s constitution, decisions of the Executive or a
Portfolio Holder decision are published within 3 working days. There is then a
further 5 working day period prior to the implementation of the decision in which
Members are able to call in the decision. If the necessary number of Members,
either the Chairman or Vice Chairman of any panel, or any 3 members of the
Overview and Scrutiny Panel or any 10 Members of the Council, ask for a
decision to be called in for scrutiny, the Overview and Scrutiny Panel has to
meet within 15 working days to consider the issue. Whilst this process takes its
course, the decision taking process is suspended. If no call-in occurs, the
decision is adopted.

If, having considered the decision, the Panel remains concerned about it, then
it may refer it back to the decision-making person or body for reconsideration,
setting out in writing the nature of its concerns or, in exceptional circumstances,
refer the matter to full Council. If referred back, the decision maker shall then
reconsider the matter within a further 10 working days and amend the decision
or not, before adopting a final decision. If however the Panel decides not to
refer the matter back, no further action is taken and the decision can take effect.

The call-in procedure does not apply where the decision being made by the
Executive is deemed to be urgent i.e. where any delay likely to be caused by
the call-in process would seriously prejudice the Council’'s or the public’s
interests. This should be clearly stated in the record of the decision. The
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel or in his/her absence the
Chairman of the Council must agree that the decision proposed is reasonable
in all the circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency. Decisions
taken as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next available meeting of
the Overview and Scrutiny Panel together with the reasons for the urgency.

Because of the nature of the call-in procedure, it is generally recognised as a
mechanism of last resort. Indeed Government guidance states that it would

Page 32



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

clearly be detrimental to efficient decision making if every individual decision of
the Executive were called in for overview and scrutiny as a matter of course.

The call-in procedure is therefore utilised when other means of influencing
decision making have failed. Fenland District Council did not utilise the call-in
procedure at all during 2023/24. There were 5 occasions during 2023/24 when
the Chairman exercised her power to waive the need for call-in during on
grounds of urgency; Acceptance of the Planning Skills Delivery Fund,
Acceptance of Defra Food Waste Capital Funding, Procurement of Polling
Station Software, Healthy Homes Project and property purchase.

A FORWARD LOOK TO 2024/2025

Fenland’s Priorities

In Fenland’s Business Plan 2024/25 the Council’s corporate priorities remain:
e Communities

e Economy

e Environment

Quality Organisation

It is important that the work of Overview and Scrutiny complements these
priorities to ensure services are being delivered to highest quality and any
scrutiny work adds value. In addition the current Business Plan outlines the fact
that Cabinet members have selected a number of projects to contribute towards
the ‘Council for the Future’ agenda. These projects have a variety of aims; from
tackling areas of particular need within the district, to transforming services and
the wider organisation sustainably to be fit for the future. The Overview and
Scrutiny work programme will also be informed by the Council for the Future
agenda.

What the Overview and Scrutiny Panel will achieve in 2024/25

Strategic Priorities

The Overview and Scrutiny Panel will continue to articulate recommendations
associated with the work plan and monitor how effectively the
recommendations have been received and endorsed by the associated
decision-making bodies.

Work Programme

The Overview and Scrutiny work programme is a detailed programme that
indicates the topics that the Overview and Scrutiny Panel will scrutinise. The
work programme is developed on a rolling basis and has been updated and

Page 33



8.1

revised for the forthcoming municipal year. Topics already identified for
inclusion include a review of the Council’'s Corporate Priorities including
Communities, Economy and Planning and Environment as well as Q&A
sessions with partner organisations such as the Road Safety Partnership,
Clarion Housing, Anglian Water and the Arts Council. This will also sit
alongside regular items such as scrutiny of the Budget and Business Plan and
the Council’s management of complaints.

CONTACTS

Work of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel is enhanced by the involvement of
Fenland residents, service users, our partners and local businesses as they
bring an alternative perspective whilst also providing external challenge. If,
therefore, you would like further details about any of the work mentioned in this
report, or on how residents and partner organisations can contribute to the work
of Overview and Scrutiny within Fenland we would very much welcome your
input, please contact:

Helen Moore - Member Services Officer
HMoore@fenland.gov.uk

Amy Brown — Assistant Director
amybrown@fenland.gov.uk

Page 34


mailto:HMoore@fenland.gov.uk
mailto:amybrown@fenland.gov.uk

G¢ abed

Revised June 2024

Agenda Item No. 10

Overview and Scrutiny — Draft Work Programme 2024-2025

All Informal pre-meetings are held via Teams until further notice,
but Formal meetings will be held in the Council Chamber at Fenland Hall

Meeting Dates

Agenda Despatch Due

Informal pre-meeting

Formal Overview & Scrutiny Meeting

Date
Date Time Location Date Meeting
28 June 2024 1 July 2024 2.00pm | ViaTeams |12 July 2024 10.00am
30 August 2024 2 September 2024 2.00pm | ViaTeams | 9 September 2024 10.00am
>
11 October 2024 14 October 2024 2.00pm | ViaTeams | 21 October 2024 10.00am (g:li
22 November 2024 25 November 2024 2.00pm | ViaTeams |2 December 2024 10.00am g::sL
)
10 January 2025 13 January 2025 2.00pm | Via Teams | 20 January 2025 10.00am ;[;'_
March 2025 25 February 2025 2.00pm | ViaTeams | 3 March 2025 10.00am —
-

v

0



April 2025 22 April 2025 2.00pm | ViaTeams |29 April 2025 10.00am

New Municipal Year —

Time Agenda Item Fenland Corporate Priority Portfolio Holder/ CMT/Officer/Guest

12 July 2024

Time Agenda Item Fenland Corporate Priority Portfolio Holder/ CMT/Officer/Guest
10.00 -12.00 Appointment of the Chairman and Vice- Amy Brown
Meeting Chairman for the Municipal Year Chair
Freedom Leisure Communities Carol Pilson
Cllr Miscandlon
Phil Hughes
0O&S Annual Report All Amy Brown
Chair
Matters arising — Update on previous actions All Amy Brown
Future Work Programme 2023/24 All Amy Brown
Chair

9¢ abed



9 September 2024

Time

10.00-12.00
Meeting

Agenda Item

Road Safety Partnership and Vision Zero

Fenland Corporate Priority

Environment
Communities

Portfolio Holder/ CMT/Officer/Guest

Dan Horn

Clir Wallwork

Alan Boughen

Police representative for Fenland (tbc)
Simon Burgin

/€ abed

Progress in Delivering the Economy Corporate
Obijectives to include Planning 2023/24

Economy

Clir Benney
Cllr Seaton

Clir Laws

Clir Wallwork
Clir Hoy

Cllr Mrs French
ClIr Tierney
Clir Boden
Carol Pilson
Dan Horn
Anna Goodall
Simon Jackson
Mark Greenwood




Phil Hughes
Peter Catchpole

Wendy Otter

Head of Planning (tbc)
Update on CPCA Growth Service and impact Economy Clir Benney
on Economic Development in Fenland Peter Catchpole

Simon Jackson
Mark Greenwood
Anna Goodall

Matters arising — Update on previous actions All Amy Brown

Future Work Programme 2023/24 All Chairman
Amy Brown

21 October 2024

Time Agenda Item Fenland Corporate Priority Portfolio Holder/ CMT/Officer/Guest

10.00 -12.00 Annual Meeting with the Leader and Chief Paul Medd
Meeting Executive Clir Boden
All of CMT
All of Cabinet

Commercial Investment Strategy and Economy Clir Boden
Investment Board Update ClIr Tierney

Clir Benney

Paul Medd
Peter Catchpole
Dan Horn

Anna Goodall
Mark Saunders
Adam Broadway
Simon Machen

Transformation & Communications Portfolio Quality Organisation Anna Goodall
Holder update Peter Catchpole
David Wright
Stephen Beacher

8¢ abed




6c abed

Sam Anthony
Councillor Tierney

Matters arising — Update on previous actions All Amy Brown
Future Work Programme 2023/24 All Chairman
Amy Brown

2 December 2024

Time Agenda Item Fenland Corporate Priority Portfolio Holder/ CMT/Officer/Guest
10.00 -12.00 Anglian Water Cllr Murphy
Meeting Grant Tuffs Anglian Water
Progress of Corporate Priority — Environment Annabel Tighe
(to include CSP & CCTV) Clir Count
Clir Mrs French
Clir Murphy
Clir Tierney
Dan Horn
Garry Edwards
Mark Mathews
Phil Hughes
LGO & 3CS Quality Organisation ClIr Tierney
Matters arising — Update on previous actions All Amy Brown
Future Work Programme 2023/24 All Chairman
Amy Brown
20 January 2025
Time Agenda Item Fenland Corporate Priority Portfolio Holder/ CMT/Officer/Guest




Ot abed

10.00 -12.00 Draft Budget 2025/26 Quality Organisation Cabinet
Meeting CMT
Draft Business Plan 2025/26 Quality Organisation Cabinet
CMT
Dave Wright

Fees and Charges 2025/26

Quality Organisation

Councillor Boden
Peter Catchpole
Cabinet

Mark Saunders
All of CMT

Matters arising — Update on previous actions

All

Amy Brown

Future Work Programme 2023/24

All

Chairman
Amy Brown

3 March 2025

Time

10.00 -12.00
Meeting

Agenda Item

Arts Council

Fenland Corporate Priority

Communities

Portfolio Holder/ CMT/Officer/Guest

Public Health & Education

Communities

Progress on Corporate Priorities —
Communities

Communities

Matters arising — Update on previous actions All Amy Brown
Future Work Programme 2023/24 All Chairman
Amy Brown

29 April 2025

( Boat house)

Time

10.00 -12.00
Meeting

Agenda Item

KEEP CLEAR IF POSSIBLE

Fenland Corporate Priority

Portfolio Holder/ CMT/Officer/Guest




Tt abed

Matters arising — Update on previous actions All Amy Brown
Future Work Programme 2023/24 All Chairman
Amy Brown




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Previous Minutes.
	8 Freedom Leisure - Review
	9 Overview & Scrutiny Annual Report
	COVER SHEET
	1 Purpose / Summary
	3 Recommendations

	OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24
	1 CHAIRMAN'S FOREWORD
	2.  THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 2023-2024
	3 INTRODUCTION
	What is Overview and Scrutiny?
	Main responsibilities of Overview and Scrutiny
	Appointing Members onto Overview and Scrutiny
	Relationship between Overview and Scrutiny, Cabinet and Full Council

	4 A BACKWARD LOOK TO 2023 - 2024
	What the Overview and Scrutiny Panel achieved in 2023/2024
	External advisors/partners
	How the work of Overview and Scrutiny is linked to the Council’s corporate priorities

	5 Specific reviews undertaken in 2023- 2024
	6 Overview and Scrutiny Call – In
	7 A FORWARD LOOK TO 2024/2025
	Fenland’s Priorities
	What the Overview and Scrutiny Panel will achieve in 2024/25
	Strategic Priorities
	Work Programme

	8 CONTACTS

	1 Overview and Scrutiny May 2023 – April 2024
	2 Overview and Scrutiny May 2024 – April 2025

	10 Future Work Programme

